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 1
                        STATE OF INDIANA
 2
 3
 4                   CIVIL RIGHTS COMMISSION
 5
 6
 7       The Indiana Civil Rights Commission meeting was
 8  held on the 25th day of JANUARY, 2013, at the Indiana
 9  Government Center South, 402 West Washington Street,
10  Conference Center Room A, Indianapolis, Indiana, and
11  reported by me, Marjorie A. Addington, Notary Public in
12  and for the County of Hamilton, State of Indiana, CM,
13  CSR: KS, OK.
14       The following persons were present for the meeting:
15  Commissioner Alpha Blackburn, Commissioner David Carter,
16  Commissioner Steven Ramos, Commissioner Barry Baynard,
17  and Commissioner Tehiji Crenshaw.  Also present are
18  Executive Director Jamal Smith, Deputy Director Akia
19  Haynes, Pamela Cook, and Debbie Rincones-Chavez.
20
21
22
                  ACCURATE REPORTING OF INDIANA
23             William F. Daniels Prop. RPR/CP CM
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 1                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Good morning and
 2  welcome to the public meeting, the January public
 3  meeting of the Indiana Civil Rights Commission.  Happy
 4  2013!  In the absence of our Chairwoman I will be
 5  starting the meeting and perhaps hand it over to her
 6  when she arrives.
 7                We do have a quorum, so the next item of
 8  business is to approve and adopt the minutes of the last
 9  meeting.  May I have a motion to do so?
10                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  So moved.
11                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  Second.
12                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?
13                (All respond "aye".)
14                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
15                (No response.)
16                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Ms. Cook, would you
17  like to deliver a financial report?
18                MS. COOK:  Good morning.
19                (All respond "good morning".)
20                MS. COOK:  You've had a chance to review
21  the December financial report located in your packets.
22  The only thing I'd like to make mention of is that we
23  have received the second quarterly disbursement for our
24  HUD Partnership Funds in the amount of $62,500, and at
25  this point we do anticipate receiving the balance of
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 1  that agreement of the 125,000 by the end of this fiscal
 2  year.  If you have any questions I'd like to entertain
 3  those at this time.
 4                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Are there any
 5  questions?
 6                (No response.)
 7                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Hearing none, thank
 8  you.  And we'll continue to old business and the reports
 9  by the Commissioners on complainant appeals.  I will go
10  first because I'm first on the agenda.
11                In the case of Heather Bass versus
12  Bloomington Housing Authority I recommend we uphold the
13  finding of no reasonable cause.  May I have a motion to
14  accept that recommendation?
15                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  So moved.
16                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  Second.
17                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?
18                (All respond "aye".)
19                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
20                (No response.)
21                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.  Ms.
22  Crenshaw?
23                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  The case of Viola
24  Wilcox, on behalf of Briley Wilcox versus Seymour
25  Community School Corporation I'd like to make a motion


ACCURATE REPORTING OF INDIANA







Page 4


 1  we accept the Executive Director's finding of no
 2  probable cause.
 3                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And may I have a
 4  motion to accept that recommendation?
 5                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  So moved.
 6                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Second.
 7                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?
 8                (All respond "aye".)
 9                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
10                (No response.)
11                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.  Mr.
12  Ramos?
13                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  In the case of
14  Michelle Weatherspoon versus St. John's Lutheran Church
15  I recommend that we uphold the Executive Director's
16  finding of no probable cause.
17                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And may I have a
18  motion to accept that recommendation?
19                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  So moved.
20                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  Second.
21                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?
22                (All respond "aye".)
23                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
24                (No response.)
25                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Anything from
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 1  Commissioner Garcia?
 2                MS. RINCONES-CHAVEZ:  Yes.  Good morning.
 3  For Commissioner Garcia, Lavia Parks versus Dollar Tree
 4  is upheld to no probable cause.  Thank you.
 5                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.  May I
 6  have a motion to accept that recommendation?
 7                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  So moved.
 8                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  Second.
 9                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?
10                (All respond "aye".)
11                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
12                (No response.)
13                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.
14  Commissioner Baynard?
15                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  Yes.  In the case of
16  John Garis versus Honeywell Aerospace I would recommend
17  to the Commission that we uphold the finding of no
18  probable cause.
19                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And may I have a
20  motion to accept that recommendation?
21                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  So moved.
22                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Second.
23                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?
24                (All respond "aye".)
25                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
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 1                (No response.)
 2                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Okay, and
 3  Commissioner Gidney, I have a memo here:  "In the case
 4  of Brooks versus Sheraton Hotels my recommendation is to
 5  reverse the finding of no cause," and since he is
 6  reversing, he added "The complainant, who is an African-
 7  American male, sought lodging at the Sheraton and found
 8  what he considered to be unfavorable treatment prompting
 9  him to leave.  The Sheraton has not refuted the validity
10  of the claimant's story.  The position of the Sheraton
11  is that there was neither an actual, nor an actionable
12  refusal of services on their part because the
13  complainant left by choice.  My reversal recommendation
14  is based on the belief that the hotel bears some
15  responsibility for the conditions which prompted the
16  complainant to leave."  And may I have a motion to
17  accept that recommendation to reverse?
18                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  So moved.
19                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Second?
20                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  Second.
21                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Okay, all in favor?
22                (All respond "aye".)
23                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
24                (No response.)
25                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.  New
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 1  business, assignment of new appeals.  Commissioner
 2  Crenshaw, if you would review the case of Tiffini Vance
 3  versus Steak N Shake Restaurant and Annette Polk versus
 4  James Management Group.
 5                Mr. Baynard, if you would review Terry
 6  Lymon versus UAW Local 2209 and Dominque Smith versus
 7  Michiana Behavioral Health.
 8                Commissioner Ramos, Everett Harding versus
 9  Goodwill Industries of Central Indiana and Enrique
10  Rosales versus Diversco, Inc.
11                And I will review Gerald Harsh versus
12  Honeywell Aerospace and Travis Story versus The Judge
13  Group.  And I'll review Commissioner Blackburn's as
14  well, Darlene Sharpe versus Kroger Food Store.
15                MS. RINCONES-CHAVEZ:  Thank you.
16                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Findings of fact,
17  conclusions of law and order.  There are four.  Brittany
18  N. Taylor versus Elkhart Rehabilitation Center, Sarah R.
19  Hunt versus Subway, Tosha Vick versus Subway, and
20  Victoria Minne versus Nick's Patio.  May I have a motion
21  to accept those findings, please?
22                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  So moved.
23                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  Second.
24                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?
25                (All respond "aye".)


ACCURATE REPORTING OF INDIANA







Page 8


 1                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
 2                (No response.)
 3                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.  And there
 4  are no consent agreements, and so we arrive at the
 5  administrative update from the Executive Director.
 6                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Good afternoon.
 7                (All respond "good afternoon".)
 8                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Really quick I
 9  wanted to touch base on a few things, specifically our
10  outreach and education efforts.  A few things to note,
11  one is we've just come off of our MLK coordination of
12  events.  It went very well, if I may say so myself.  We
13  had an event here at the State House.  Wanted to give a
14  public congratulations or a "Thank You," if you will, to
15  the staff who pulled off a very successful event,
16  represented the Commission very, very well.  Governor
17  Pence attended, as well as we had a good keynote speaker
18  and Mr. Gary Brackett, who was there as well.
19                A few things to note about that Thursday,
20  which was January 17, if I'm not mistaken, a very good
21  and diverse group of award recipients, also the second
22  year of us awarding our MLK Art, Writing and Multimedia
23  Contest winner, which is a young person throughout the
24  state that we give that award to in conjunction with
25  Indiana Black Expo.  Very, very deserving young lady,
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 1  Ms. Mia Gjeldum was the winner this year and did very,
 2  very well, as did the other recipients.  We followed
 3  Thursday, the 17th, by a day of service that Friday, the
 4  morning of January 18th, here on MLK Boulevard with a
 5  community cleanup and kind of a day of action.  Governor
 6  Pence showed up there as well to help with some cleanup,
 7  ironically did a very good job of that, as did Mr. Gary
 8  Brackett, who agreed to come out that Friday and help
 9  participate as well, so we got a lot of good coverage.
10                I'm not sure if you guys have had an
11  opportunity to pull up some of the media bites that came
12  from that, but we had very, very good coverage for the
13  Agency throughout the state, so we were very excited
14  about that piece.  Tons of media interviews came out of
15  that with more than 20, 30 some odd media outlets,
16  including Hispanic radio and TV, so we were excited
17  about that.
18                A few things to note in terms of upcoming
19  events.  Continuing our efforts with the Burmese
20  community, we have a Burmese Community Outreach Meeting
21  coming up in late February on the 23rd, that should be
22  in your packet as well, as well as a list of other --
23  there's another one in March, a Burmese Community
24  Outreach Meeting on the 9th of March, as well as the
25  30th of March, so we're excited about that as well.
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 1                The Holocaust event comes up in April, and
 2  as we all know, that is Fair Housing Month, so we will
 3  be hosting a Fair Housing Conference here in
 4  Indianapolis on the 18th and we plan to make that as
 5  comprehensive of a conference as we can come up with,
 6  and kind of planting the seed in the back of the
 7  Commissioners' minds now, would love to have you guys
 8  engaged in that as well.
 9                A few housekeeping and personnel issues,
10  not "issues," but updates to give and I'll have her come
11  to the mike here in a minute, but we are excited to have
12  onboard our new Deputy Director, Ms. Akia Haynes, who is
13  taking the place of Mr. Joshua Brewster, who moved on to
14  greener pastures, so we're excited to have Ms. Haynes
15  with us and she's here with us today.
16                Judge Lange, our long-standing ALJ, has
17  gone on and we are in the process of looking to -- you
18  can never replace Judge Lange -- but looking to fill
19  that void as well.  We had to deal with a lot of
20  transitions with the change in administration and things
21  of that nature, so the process to pull in new folks is,
22  if you can believe it, taking a lot longer than
23  anticipated because government stuff tends to take a lot
24  longer than we would like anyway.  And we're also
25  looking to hire someone else in our Outreach and
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 1  Education area, a communications specialist to help do
 2  more in that area.  We're pushing forward and I would
 3  argue that that group has been the catalyst behind a lot
 4  of the new events and good things that we're doing with
 5  the Agency.  We want to continue to foster that piece as
 6  well, so those two we're still looking to fill.  But,
 7  again, we do have Ms. Haynes with us here and I'd like
 8  her to come to the microphone and introduce herself to
 9  the Commission, and if you guys have any questions for
10  me, I'll take those at this time.
11                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Just to comment on the
12  MLK session, I was there, it was done extremely well, it
13  always has been, but I thought that was probably one of
14  the first things that Governor Pence had the opportunity
15  to speak at and I thought he did a very good job in
16  light of being the first thing that he had to do
17  officially, so it was good to make sure he was there, I
18  think that was important for everybody.  And I didn't
19  hear you say much about the Youth Session in the
20  morning, but I know you had a lot of people in the Youth
21  Session, too.
22                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  You know what, I
23  apologize for that, you're absolutely right,
24  Commissioner Ramos.  Prior to the deal at the State
25  House we had the Youth Summit, we had nearly 400 young
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 1  people from across the state attend that piece in
 2  conjunction with the Indiana State Museum.  That went
 3  extremely well, got a lot of good feedback from that,
 4  from the kids, of course, as well a lot of the
 5  administrators and teachers and things that brought the
 6  kids from various parts of the state.  So you're
 7  absolutely right, I apologize for that.  That kind of
 8  set the tone and the mood for the two days and it went
 9  well, went off without a hitch.
10                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Yeah, it would be
11  great to get the download, the song that the young lady
12  sang.  I don't know if you had a chance to listen to it
13  but I highly recommend it.
14                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  It was very
15  moving.
16                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Very moving.
17                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  We're looking to
18  see if we can get -- We're hoping that the whole event
19  was recorded on video and if so we'll make sure that we
20  at least have either copies of that or snippets of that
21  that we can upload online that you guys can kind of
22  chime in and check out, but I agree with you, she was
23  phenomenal, and in my personal opinion she represented,
24  you know, the whole purpose of the day very, very well.
25  You know, I was intentional about my comments about it
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 1  being a diverse group of people, so, you know, we're
 2  celebrating the legacy and life of Dr. King, right, who
 3  advocated for all and we had a good diverse group of
 4  people from an age standpoint, from a race standpoint,
 5  social and economic background status, so, you know, all
 6  of those things played into it and we were very excited
 7  not only for her but everyone, but, you know, to your
 8  point, she did a phenomenal job and was, you could
 9  argue, kind of the life of the event that day.
10                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Yeah, I think so.
11  Picture Nora Jones sitting down at the piano and playing
12  a song and knocking it out of the park.
13                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Yes.
14                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  That's pretty much
15  what she did.  Her voice was just as good.  Technically,
16  she should have a contract.  We should get her on
17  American Idol or something.
18                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  All right.
19                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  Will you be her
20  agent?
21                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  He's pushing to
22  be her agent.  Any other questions for me?
23                (No response.)
24                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  At this time I'd
25  like to introduce Ms. Akia Haynes and let her give you a
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 1  little bit of background about herself.
 2                DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAYNES:  Thank you, Jamal,
 3  for your kind words.  My name is Akia Haynes, I'm a
 4  native Hoosier, born and raised in Indianapolis.  Went
 5  away to South Bend for a little bit of time, Notre Dame
 6  for undergrad, as well as law school.  I was a Deputy
 7  Director for about three years, I was in licensing
 8  enforcement for the last portion, as well as civil
 9  rights and employment for that first portion, so have a
10  bit of experience all over the place, and currently I am
11  now Deputy Director and I'm looking forward to working
12  with you guys and working with the organization, so I'm
13  very excited about this experience.  Anyone want to
14  learn anything else?
15                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any questions?
16  Otherwise, welcome!
17                DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAYNES:  Thank you so much.
18                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  We look forward to
19  working with you.
20                DEPUTY DIRECTORY HAYNES:  I look forward to
21  it as well.
22                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And for the record I
23  would note that our Chair has arrived.  If she would
24  like, I will turn over the gavel to her.  I didn't mean
25  to talk to you in the third person as if you weren't
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 1  here.
 2                COMMISSIONER BLACKBURN:  No, thank you.
 3  Carry on.  I don't want to interrupt your flow.
 4                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Okay.  Well, that,
 5  with the Administrative Update, brings us to
 6  announcements.  I have one.  There was an additional
 7  thing from Commissioner Gidney here.  He wants to go on
 8  record and commend the Washington, DC based staff of
 9  Senator Joe Donnelly.  He found them to be extremely
10  helpful during his visit to DC for the 57th Inauguration
11  of President Barack Obama.  And are there any other
12  announcements, observations, songs, dances?
13                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Any other changes
14  expected from the new administration?
15                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Not to my
16  knowledge, but I've kind of learned in this line of work
17  that you just anticipate whatever comes and just learn
18  how to be good at calling them out when they do arrive,
19  so at this point I, you know, think that we've put
20  together a really good plan and the Agency is humming
21  right along.  I don't expect any changes, at least any
22  adverse changes, whether it's staff, personnel or
23  strategic objectives, so we're looking forward to
24  pushing right along.
25                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  And it wasn't on his
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 1  radar screen from the speech that he had at his
 2  inauguration speech, so I would presume that's a safe
 3  conclusion.
 4                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Yeah, I think if
 5  we're not in the area of -- Well, you know, keep in mind
 6  that one of our pushes has been education, obviously,
 7  which is one of the initiatives that we took on in our
 8  strategic plan, so there is some overlap, but, you know,
 9  we are not DOE, nor are we, you know, the policy
10  administrators of education for the state, you know, we
11  just kind of -- we've adopted the idea that everyone
12  deserves equal access to a quality education.  As the
13  Civil Rights Commission we want to make sure we uphold
14  that piece as one of our missions and objectives, so as
15  such, you know, we assume that we will have some
16  conversation with, you know, the players at the table as
17  it relates to the disparities in education, but we don't
18  think that anything administratively from the Governor's
19  Office will affect our plans here.
20                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  I would just like to
21  note that I brought in an AP article from Indianapolis
22  that on this same day of the MLK holiday commemoration
23  Joe Hogsett, who's a US Attorney, announced the creation
24  of the Task Force for Civil Rights Enforcement and he is
25  the US Attorney for the southern area of Indiana, which
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 1  I have other information that involves the 60 counties
 2  of southern Indiana.
 3                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Yes, of southern
 4  Indiana.
 5                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Yes, and I wondered
 6  when I saw it how much duplication there was and I don't
 7  know.  I do know that the southern 60 counties of
 8  Indiana tend to be underserved by every agency, not just
 9  us, and I know this because in the past I have been
10  involved in some ADA compliance issues and anything
11  south of Bedford is the "Wild West."  There's no
12  official representation until you get down to the river.
13                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  We were made
14  aware of that.  I know you didn't put it in the form of
15  a question, but we are attempting to gather as much
16  information about those efforts as we can, number 1, to
17  your point, to see whether there are any duplicated
18  efforts going on and if so how can we collaborate there
19  and prevent that duplication from happening.
20                Two, see whether as an agency we've left
21  some holes somewhere that perhaps we need to fill and
22  plug in kind of from the Fed's viewpoint, and then, too,
23  it sounds like we've, you know, got some more contacts
24  that we need to make as an agency, especially as it
25  relates to that southern half of the state.  So as soon
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 1  as we gather information for that we'll make sure that
 2  we communicate that back to the Commission and keep you
 3  guys informed as we move along.
 4                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Since we already do
 5  so much EEOC and HUD work --
 6                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Yes, we thought
 7  it was a bit surprising, the announcement, especially
 8  considering we hadn't received any phone calls or any
 9  inquiries at all, but I will go on the record and say
10  that duplication is not uncommon for government at all
11  levels, it's unfortunate, but hopefully we can play a
12  part in preventing as much of that as we can.
13                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  We certainly don't
14  need more jurisdictional dispute in those areas.  Are
15  there any more comments or questions?
16                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  I have one.  Since
17  we're in a new session of the General Assembly, are
18  there any bills before the Assembly that will affect us?
19                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Very good
20  question.  The short answer to that question is no.  I
21  will say, though, that we received about a week ago a
22  list of proposed statutory changes that they thought
23  initially would affect us.  There was a state rep, his
24  name escapes me at this time, who wanted to include the
25  word "disability" in a ton of different statutes, any of
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 1  the civil statutes, and of course that was one of ours.
 2  We had to call and say that that's already one of our
 3  protected classes and one that we fight for currently
 4  and so there was no need to amend that piece, and it was
 5  kind of a teaching moment for that side of things.
 6  However, there are some other agencies that have a
 7  policy that affect the disabled community that they
 8  wanted to make sure was added to those statutes, so we
 9  could potentially be pulled in to, you know, perhaps
10  testify about what we do as an agency.  That remains to
11  be seen.  That depends on how far that proposal goes,
12  but as it relates to the Civil Rights Law, the Indiana
13  Civil Rights Law that creates us, there shouldn't be any
14  changes for that.
15                We will keep an eye -- Danny Lopez, who is
16  the other Deputy in the office, he serves "slash the
17  legislative liaison" and it's his job to keep an eye on
18  all of those things that come down.  So currently,
19  outside of that one, which we've kind of diffused, there
20  aren't any legislative proposals that would affect us as
21  an agency...yet.  So keeping an eye on it.  That's a
22  very good question.
23                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  If there are no more
24  questions, before we adjourn I would like to go back to
25  the assignment of appeals and instead of taking three
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 1  appeals, I will pass the one that was originally
 2  assigned to Commissioner Blackburn back to her, that was
 3  Darlene Sharpe versus Kroger Food Store.
 4                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  You made it just
 5  in time.
 6                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And with that, --
 7                COMMISSIONER BLACKBURN:  Lucky me!
 8                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  I know.
 9                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  -- stay for
10  signatures if there are any.
11                MS. RINCONES-CHAVEZ:  Yes.
12                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And make note of the
13  meeting dates for the year, and we are adjourned.
14                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Thank you.
15                (WHEREUPON, at 11:52 a.m., January 25,
16                 2013, this meeting concluded for the day.)
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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 1                         CERTIFICATE
 2  STATE OF INDIANA
                            ss:
 3  COUNTY OF HAMILTON
 4
 5       I, Marjorie A. Addington, the undersigned Court
    Reporter and Notary Public residing and maintaining
 6  offices in the City of Carmel, Hamilton County, Indiana,
    do hereby certify:
 7
 8
 9       That I reported to the best of my ability in
    machine shorthand all of the words spoken by all parties
10  in attendance during the course of the hearing;
11
12
         That I later reduced my shorthand notes into the
13  foregoing typewritten transcript form, which typewritten
    transcript is a true record to the best of my ability of
14  the hearing;
15
16
         That I am not a relative or employee or attorney or
17  counsel of any of the parties, nor am I a relative or an
    employee of such attorney or counsel, and that I am not
18  financially interested in this action.
19
              IN WITNESS HERETO, I have affixed my
20            Notarial Seal and subscribed my
              signature below this 25th day of
21            January, 2013.
22
23  Notary Public
    County of Residence:  Hamilton        (Seal)
24  My Commission Expires on:  August 22, 2015
25
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 1 
                        STATE OF INDIANA
 2 
   
 3 
   
 4                   CIVIL RIGHTS COMMISSION
   
 5 
   
 6 
   
 7       The Indiana Civil Rights Commission meeting was
   
 8  held on the 25th day of JANUARY, 2013, at the Indiana
   
 9  Government Center South, 402 West Washington Street,
   
10  Conference Center Room A, Indianapolis, Indiana, and
   
11  reported by me, Marjorie A. Addington, Notary Public in
   
12  and for the County of Hamilton, State of Indiana, CM,
   
13  CSR: KS, OK.
   
14       The following persons were present for the meeting:
   
15  Commissioner Alpha Blackburn, Commissioner David Carter,
   
16  Commissioner Steven Ramos, Commissioner Barry Baynard,
   
17  and Commissioner Tehiji Crenshaw.  Also present are
   
18  Executive Director Jamal Smith, Deputy Director Akia
   
19  Haynes, Pamela Cook, and Debbie Rincones-Chavez.
   
20 
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 1                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Good morning and


 2  welcome to the public meeting, the January public
 3  meeting of the Indiana Civil Rights Commission.  Happy
 4  2013!  In the absence of our Chairwoman I will be
 5  starting the meeting and perhaps hand it over to her
 6  when she arrives.
 7                We do have a quorum, so the next item of
 8  business is to approve and adopt the minutes of the last
 9  meeting.  May I have a motion to do so?
10                COMMISSIONER RAMOS: So moved.
11                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW: Second.
12                COMMISSIONER CARTER: All in favor?
13                (All respond "aye".)
14                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Any opposed?
15                (No response.)
16                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Ms. Cook, would you


17  like to deliver a financial report?
18                MS. COOK: Good morning.
19                (All respond "good morning".)
20                MS. COOK: You've had a chance to review
21  the December financial report located in your packets.
22  The only thing I'd like to make mention of is that we
23  have received the second quarterly disbursement for our
24  HUD Partnership Funds in the amount of $62,500, and at
25  this point we do anticipate receiving the balance of
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 1  that agreement of the 125,000 by the end of this fiscal
 2  year.  If you have any questions I'd like to entertain
 3  those at this time.
 4                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Are there any
 5  questions?
 6                (No response.)
 7                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Hearing none, thank


 8  you.  And we'll continue to old business and the reports
 9  by the Commissioners on complainant appeals.  I will go
10  first because I'm first on the agenda.
11                In the case of Heather Bass versus
12  Bloomington Housing Authority I recommend we uphold the
13  finding of no reasonable cause.  May I have a motion to
14  accept that recommendation?
15                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW: So moved.
16                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD: Second.
17                COMMISSIONER CARTER: All in favor?
18                (All respond "aye".)
19                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Any opposed?
20                (No response.)
21                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you.  Ms.


22  Crenshaw?
23                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW: The case of Viola


24  Wilcox, on behalf of Briley Wilcox versus Seymour
25  Community School Corporation I'd like to make a motion
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 1  we accept the Executive Director's finding of no
 2  probable cause.
 3                COMMISSIONER CARTER: And may I have a


 4  motion to accept that recommendation?
 5                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD: So moved.
 6                COMMISSIONER RAMOS: Second.
 7                COMMISSIONER CARTER: All in favor?
 8                (All respond "aye".)
 9                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Any opposed?
10                (No response.)
11                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you.  Mr.


12  Ramos?
13                COMMISSIONER RAMOS: In the case of
14  Michelle Weatherspoon versus St. John's Lutheran Church
15  I recommend that we uphold the Executive Director's
16  finding of no probable cause.
17                COMMISSIONER CARTER: And may I have a


18  motion to accept that recommendation?
19                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD: So moved.
20                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW: Second.
21                COMMISSIONER CARTER: All in favor?
22                (All respond "aye".)
23                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Any opposed?
24                (No response.)
25                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Anything from
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 1  Commissioner Garcia?
 2                MS. RINCONES-CHAVEZ: Yes.  Good morning.


 3  For Commissioner Garcia, Lavia Parks versus Dollar Tree
 4  is upheld to no probable cause.  Thank you.
 5                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you.  May I


 6  have a motion to accept that recommendation?
 7                COMMISSIONER RAMOS: So moved.
 8                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD: Second.
 9                COMMISSIONER CARTER: All in favor?
10                (All respond "aye".)
11                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Any opposed?
12                (No response.)
13                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you.
14  Commissioner Baynard?
15                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD: Yes.  In the case of


16  John Garis versus Honeywell Aerospace I would recommend
17  to the Commission that we uphold the finding of no
18  probable cause.
19                COMMISSIONER CARTER: And may I have a


20  motion to accept that recommendation?
21                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW: So moved.
22                COMMISSIONER RAMOS: Second.
23                COMMISSIONER CARTER: All in favor?
24                (All respond "aye".)
25                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Any opposed?
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 1                (No response.)
 2                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Okay, and
 3  Commissioner Gidney, I have a memo here:  "In the case
 4  of Brooks versus Sheraton Hotels my recommendation is to
 5  reverse the finding of no cause," and since he is
 6  reversing, he added "The complainant, who is an African-
 7  American male, sought lodging at the Sheraton and found
 8  what he considered to be unfavorable treatment prompting
 9  him to leave.  The Sheraton has not refuted the validity
10  of the claimant's story.  The position of the Sheraton
11  is that there was neither an actual, nor an actionable
12  refusal of services on their part because the
13  complainant left by choice.  My reversal recommendation
14  is based on the belief that the hotel bears some
15  responsibility for the conditions which prompted the
16  complainant to leave."  And may I have a motion to
17  accept that recommendation to reverse?
18                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW: So moved.
19                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Second?
20                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD: Second.
21                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Okay, all in favor?


22                (All respond "aye".)
23                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Any opposed?
24                (No response.)
25                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you.  New
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 1  business, assignment of new appeals.  Commissioner
 2  Crenshaw, if you would review the case of Tiffini Vance
 3  versus Steak N Shake Restaurant and Annette Polk versus
 4  James Management Group.
 5                Mr. Baynard, if you would review Terry
 6  Lymon versus UAW Local 2209 and Dominque Smith versus
 7  Michiana Behavioral Health.
 8                Commissioner Ramos, Everett Harding versus
 9  Goodwill Industries of Central Indiana and Enrique
10  Rosales versus Diversco, Inc.
11                And I will review Gerald Harsh versus
12  Honeywell Aerospace and Travis Story versus The Judge
13  Group.  And I'll review Commissioner Blackburn's as
14  well, Darlene Sharpe versus Kroger Food Store.
15                MS. RINCONES-CHAVEZ: Thank you.
16                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Findings of fact,


17  conclusions of law and order.  There are four.  Brittany
18  N. Taylor versus Elkhart Rehabilitation Center, Sarah R.
19  Hunt versus Subway, Tosha Vick versus Subway, and
20  Victoria Minne versus Nick's Patio.  May I have a motion
21  to accept those findings, please?
22                COMMISSIONER RAMOS: So moved.
23                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW: Second.
24                COMMISSIONER CARTER: All in favor?
25                (All respond "aye".)
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 1                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Any opposed?
 2                (No response.)
 3                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you.  And there


 4  are no consent agreements, and so we arrive at the
 5  administrative update from the Executive Director.
 6                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: Good afternoon.


 7                (All respond "good afternoon".)
 8                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: Really quick I


 9  wanted to touch base on a few things, specifically our
10  outreach and education efforts.  A few things to note,
11  one is we've just come off of our MLK coordination of
12  events.  It went very well, if I may say so myself.  We
13  had an event here at the State House.  Wanted to give a
14  public congratulations or a "Thank You," if you will, to
15  the staff who pulled off a very successful event,
16  represented the Commission very, very well.  Governor
17  Pence attended, as well as we had a good keynote speaker
18  and Mr. Gary Brackett, who was there as well.
19                A few things to note about that Thursday,
20  which was January 17, if I'm not mistaken, a very good
21  and diverse group of award recipients, also the second
22  year of us awarding our MLK Art, Writing and Multimedia
23  Contest winner, which is a young person throughout the
24  state that we give that award to in conjunction with
25  Indiana Black Expo.  Very, very deserving young lady,
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 1  Ms. Mia Gjeldum was the winner this year and did very,
 2  very well, as did the other recipients.  We followed
 3  Thursday, the 17th, by a day of service that Friday, the
 4  morning of January 18th, here on MLK Boulevard with a
 5  community cleanup and kind of a day of action.  Governor
 6  Pence showed up there as well to help with some cleanup,
 7  ironically did a very good job of that, as did Mr. Gary
 8  Brackett, who agreed to come out that Friday and help
 9  participate as well, so we got a lot of good coverage.
10                I'm not sure if you guys have had an
11  opportunity to pull up some of the media bites that came
12  from that, but we had very, very good coverage for the
13  Agency throughout the state, so we were very excited
14  about that piece.  Tons of media interviews came out of
15  that with more than 20, 30 some odd media outlets,
16  including Hispanic radio and TV, so we were excited
17  about that.
18                A few things to note in terms of upcoming
19  events.  Continuing our efforts with the Burmese
20  community, we have a Burmese Community Outreach Meeting
21  coming up in late February on the 23rd, that should be
22  in your packet as well, as well as a list of other --
23  there's another one in March, a Burmese Community
24  Outreach Meeting on the 9th of March, as well as the
25  30th of March, so we're excited about that as well.
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 1                The Holocaust event comes up in April, and
 2  as we all know, that is Fair Housing Month, so we will
 3  be hosting a Fair Housing Conference here in
 4  Indianapolis on the 18th and we plan to make that as
 5  comprehensive of a conference as we can come up with,
 6  and kind of planting the seed in the back of the
 7  Commissioners' minds now, would love to have you guys
 8  engaged in that as well.
 9                A few housekeeping and personnel issues,
10  not "issues," but updates to give and I'll have her come
11  to the mike here in a minute, but we are excited to have
12  onboard our new Deputy Director, Ms. Akia Haynes, who is
13  taking the place of Mr. Joshua Brewster, who moved on to
14  greener pastures, so we're excited to have Ms. Haynes
15  with us and she's here with us today.
16                Judge Lange, our long-standing ALJ, has
17  gone on and we are in the process of looking to -- you
18  can never replace Judge Lange -- but looking to fill
19  that void as well.  We had to deal with a lot of
20  transitions with the change in administration and things
21  of that nature, so the process to pull in new folks is,
22  if you can believe it, taking a lot longer than
23  anticipated because government stuff tends to take a lot
24  longer than we would like anyway.  And we're also
25  looking to hire someone else in our Outreach and
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 1  Education area, a communications specialist to help do
 2  more in that area.  We're pushing forward and I would
 3  argue that that group has been the catalyst behind a lot
 4  of the new events and good things that we're doing with
 5  the Agency.  We want to continue to foster that piece as
 6  well, so those two we're still looking to fill.  But,
 7  again, we do have Ms. Haynes with us here and I'd like
 8  her to come to the microphone and introduce herself to
 9  the Commission, and if you guys have any questions for
10  me, I'll take those at this time.
11                COMMISSIONER RAMOS: Just to comment on the


12  MLK session, I was there, it was done extremely well, it
13  always has been, but I thought that was probably one of
14  the first things that Governor Pence had the opportunity
15  to speak at and I thought he did a very good job in
16  light of being the first thing that he had to do
17  officially, so it was good to make sure he was there, I
18  think that was important for everybody.  And I didn't
19  hear you say much about the Youth Session in the
20  morning, but I know you had a lot of people in the Youth
21  Session, too.
22                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: You know what, I


23  apologize for that, you're absolutely right,
24  Commissioner Ramos.  Prior to the deal at the State
25  House we had the Youth Summit, we had nearly 400 young
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 1  people from across the state attend that piece in
 2  conjunction with the Indiana State Museum.  That went
 3  extremely well, got a lot of good feedback from that,
 4  from the kids, of course, as well a lot of the
 5  administrators and teachers and things that brought the
 6  kids from various parts of the state.  So you're
 7  absolutely right, I apologize for that.  That kind of
 8  set the tone and the mood for the two days and it went
 9  well, went off without a hitch.
10                COMMISSIONER RAMOS: Yeah, it would be


11  great to get the download, the song that the young lady
12  sang.  I don't know if you had a chance to listen to it
13  but I highly recommend it.
14                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: It was very


15  moving.
16                COMMISSIONER RAMOS: Very moving.
17                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: We're looking to


18  see if we can get -- We're hoping that the whole event
19  was recorded on video and if so we'll make sure that we
20  at least have either copies of that or snippets of that
21  that we can upload online that you guys can kind of
22  chime in and check out, but I agree with you, she was
23  phenomenal, and in my personal opinion she represented,
24  you know, the whole purpose of the day very, very well.
25  You know, I was intentional about my comments about it
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 1  being a diverse group of people, so, you know, we're
 2  celebrating the legacy and life of Dr. King, right, who
 3  advocated for all and we had a good diverse group of
 4  people from an age standpoint, from a race standpoint,
 5  social and economic background status, so, you know, all
 6  of those things played into it and we were very excited
 7  not only for her but everyone, but, you know, to your
 8  point, she did a phenomenal job and was, you could
 9  argue, kind of the life of the event that day.
10                COMMISSIONER RAMOS: Yeah, I think so.
11  Picture Nora Jones sitting down at the piano and playing
12  a song and knocking it out of the park.
13                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: Yes.
14                COMMISSIONER RAMOS: That's pretty much


15  what she did.  Her voice was just as good.  Technically,
16  she should have a contract.  We should get her on
17  American Idol or something.
18                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: All right.
19                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW: Will you be her


20  agent?
21                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: He's pushing to


22  be her agent.  Any other questions for me?
23                (No response.)
24                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: At this time I'd


25  like to introduce Ms. Akia Haynes and let her give you a
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 1  little bit of background about herself.
 2                DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAYNES: Thank you, Jamal,


 3  for your kind words.  My name is Akia Haynes, I'm a
 4  native Hoosier, born and raised in Indianapolis.  Went
 5  away to South Bend for a little bit of time, Notre Dame
 6  for undergrad, as well as law school.  I was a Deputy
 7  Director for about three years, I was in licensing
 8  enforcement for the last portion, as well as civil
 9  rights and employment for that first portion, so have a
10  bit of experience all over the place, and currently I am
11  now Deputy Director and I'm looking forward to working
12  with you guys and working with the organization, so I'm
13  very excited about this experience.  Anyone want to
14  learn anything else?
15                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Any questions?
16  Otherwise, welcome!
17                DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAYNES: Thank you so much.


18                COMMISSIONER CARTER: We look forward to


19  working with you.
20                DEPUTY DIRECTORY HAYNES: I look forward to


21  it as well.
22                COMMISSIONER CARTER: And for the record I


23  would note that our Chair has arrived.  If she would
24  like, I will turn over the gavel to her.  I didn't mean
25  to talk to you in the third person as if you weren't
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 1  here.
 2                COMMISSIONER BLACKBURN: No, thank you.


 3  Carry on.  I don't want to interrupt your flow.
 4                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Okay.  Well, that,


 5  with the Administrative Update, brings us to
 6  announcements.  I have one.  There was an additional
 7  thing from Commissioner Gidney here.  He wants to go on
 8  record and commend the Washington, DC based staff of
 9  Senator Joe Donnelly.  He found them to be extremely
10  helpful during his visit to DC for the 57th Inauguration
11  of President Barack Obama.  And are there any other
12  announcements, observations, songs, dances?
13                COMMISSIONER RAMOS: Any other changes


14  expected from the new administration?
15                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: Not to my


16  knowledge, but I've kind of learned in this line of work
17  that you just anticipate whatever comes and just learn
18  how to be good at calling them out when they do arrive,
19  so at this point I, you know, think that we've put
20  together a really good plan and the Agency is humming
21  right along.  I don't expect any changes, at least any
22  adverse changes, whether it's staff, personnel or
23  strategic objectives, so we're looking forward to
24  pushing right along.
25                COMMISSIONER RAMOS: And it wasn't on his
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 1  radar screen from the speech that he had at his
 2  inauguration speech, so I would presume that's a safe
 3  conclusion.
 4                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: Yeah, I think if


 5  we're not in the area of -- Well, you know, keep in mind
 6  that one of our pushes has been education, obviously,
 7  which is one of the initiatives that we took on in our
 8  strategic plan, so there is some overlap, but, you know,
 9  we are not DOE, nor are we, you know, the policy
10  administrators of education for the state, you know, we
11  just kind of -- we've adopted the idea that everyone
12  deserves equal access to a quality education.  As the
13  Civil Rights Commission we want to make sure we uphold
14  that piece as one of our missions and objectives, so as
15  such, you know, we assume that we will have some
16  conversation with, you know, the players at the table as
17  it relates to the disparities in education, but we don't
18  think that anything administratively from the Governor's
19  Office will affect our plans here.
20                COMMISSIONER CARTER: I would just like to


21  note that I brought in an AP article from Indianapolis
22  that on this same day of the MLK holiday commemoration
23  Joe Hogsett, who's a US Attorney, announced the creation
24  of the Task Force for Civil Rights Enforcement and he is
25  the US Attorney for the southern area of Indiana, which
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 1  I have other information that involves the 60 counties
 2  of southern Indiana.
 3                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: Yes, of southern


 4  Indiana.
 5                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Yes, and I wondered


 6  when I saw it how much duplication there was and I don't
 7  know.  I do know that the southern 60 counties of
 8  Indiana tend to be underserved by every agency, not just
 9  us, and I know this because in the past I have been
10  involved in some ADA compliance issues and anything
11  south of Bedford is the "Wild West."  There's no
12  official representation until you get down to the river.
13                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: We were made


14  aware of that.  I know you didn't put it in the form of
15  a question, but we are attempting to gather as much
16  information about those efforts as we can, number 1, to
17  your point, to see whether there are any duplicated
18  efforts going on and if so how can we collaborate there
19  and prevent that duplication from happening.
20                Two, see whether as an agency we've left
21  some holes somewhere that perhaps we need to fill and
22  plug in kind of from the Fed's viewpoint, and then, too,
23  it sounds like we've, you know, got some more contacts
24  that we need to make as an agency, especially as it
25  relates to that southern half of the state.  So as soon
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 1  as we gather information for that we'll make sure that
 2  we communicate that back to the Commission and keep you
 3  guys informed as we move along.
 4                COMMISSIONER CARTER: Since we already do


 5  so much EEOC and HUD work --
 6                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: Yes, we thought


 7  it was a bit surprising, the announcement, especially
 8  considering we hadn't received any phone calls or any
 9  inquiries at all, but I will go on the record and say
10  that duplication is not uncommon for government at all
11  levels, it's unfortunate, but hopefully we can play a
12  part in preventing as much of that as we can.
13                COMMISSIONER CARTER: We certainly don't


14  need more jurisdictional dispute in those areas.  Are
15  there any more comments or questions?
16                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD: I have one.  Since


17  we're in a new session of the General Assembly, are
18  there any bills before the Assembly that will affect us?
19                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: Very good


20  question.  The short answer to that question is no.  I
21  will say, though, that we received about a week ago a
22  list of proposed statutory changes that they thought
23  initially would affect us.  There was a state rep, his
24  name escapes me at this time, who wanted to include the
25  word "disability" in a ton of different statutes, any of
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 1  the civil statutes, and of course that was one of ours.
 2  We had to call and say that that's already one of our
 3  protected classes and one that we fight for currently
 4  and so there was no need to amend that piece, and it was
 5  kind of a teaching moment for that side of things.
 6  However, there are some other agencies that have a
 7  policy that affect the disabled community that they
 8  wanted to make sure was added to those statutes, so we
 9  could potentially be pulled in to, you know, perhaps
10  testify about what we do as an agency.  That remains to
11  be seen.  That depends on how far that proposal goes,
12  but as it relates to the Civil Rights Law, the Indiana
13  Civil Rights Law that creates us, there shouldn't be any
14  changes for that.
15                We will keep an eye -- Danny Lopez, who is
16  the other Deputy in the office, he serves "slash the
17  legislative liaison" and it's his job to keep an eye on
18  all of those things that come down.  So currently,
19  outside of that one, which we've kind of diffused, there
20  aren't any legislative proposals that would affect us as
21  an agency...yet.  So keeping an eye on it.  That's a
22  very good question.
23                COMMISSIONER CARTER: If there are no more


24  questions, before we adjourn I would like to go back to
25  the assignment of appeals and instead of taking three
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 1  appeals, I will pass the one that was originally
 2  assigned to Commissioner Blackburn back to her, that was
 3  Darlene Sharpe versus Kroger Food Store.
 4                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: You made it just


 5  in time.
 6                COMMISSIONER CARTER: And with that, --


 7                COMMISSIONER BLACKBURN: Lucky me!


 8                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: I know.
 9                COMMISSIONER CARTER: -- stay for
10  signatures if there are any.
11                MS. RINCONES-CHAVEZ: Yes.
12                COMMISSIONER CARTER: And make note of the


13  meeting dates for the year, and we are adjourned.
14                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH: Thank you.


15                (WHEREUPON, at 11:52 a.m., January 25,
16                 2013, this meeting concluded for the day.)
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
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 1                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Good morning and
  


 2   welcome to the public meeting, the January public
  


 3   meeting of the Indiana Civil Rights Commission.  Happy
  


 4   2013!  In the absence of our Chairwoman I will be
  


 5   starting the meeting and perhaps hand it over to her
  


 6   when she arrives.
  


 7                 We do have a quorum, so the next item of
  


 8   business is to approve and adopt the minutes of the last
  


 9   meeting.  May I have a motion to do so?
  


10                 COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  So moved.
  


11                 COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  Second.
  


12                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?
  


13                 (All respond "aye".)
  


14                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
  


15                 (No response.)
  


16                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Ms. Cook, would you
  


17   like to deliver a financial report?
  


18                 MS. COOK:  Good morning.
  


19                 (All respond "good morning".)
  


20                 MS. COOK:  You've had a chance to review
  


21   the December financial report located in your packets.
  


22   The only thing I'd like to make mention of is that we
  


23   have received the second quarterly disbursement for our
  


24   HUD Partnership Funds in the amount of $62,500, and at
  


25   this point we do anticipate receiving the balance of
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 1   that agreement of the 125,000 by the end of this fiscal
  


 2   year.  If you have any questions I'd like to entertain
  


 3   those at this time.
  


 4                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Are there any
  


 5   questions?
  


 6                 (No response.)
  


 7                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Hearing none, thank
  


 8   you.  And we'll continue to old business and the reports
  


 9   by the Commissioners on complainant appeals.  I will go
  


10   first because I'm first on the agenda.
  


11                 In the case of Heather Bass versus
  


12   Bloomington Housing Authority I recommend we uphold the
  


13   finding of no reasonable cause.  May I have a motion to
  


14   accept that recommendation?
  


15                 COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  So moved.
  


16                 COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  Second.
  


17                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?
  


18                 (All respond "aye".)
  


19                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
  


20                 (No response.)
  


21                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.  Ms.
  


22   Crenshaw?
  


23                 COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  The case of Viola
  


24   Wilcox, on behalf of Briley Wilcox versus Seymour
  


25   Community School Corporation I'd like to make a motion
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 1   we accept the Executive Director's finding of no
  


 2   probable cause.
  


 3                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And may I have a
  


 4   motion to accept that recommendation?
  


 5                 COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  So moved.
  


 6                 COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Second.
  


 7                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?
  


 8                 (All respond "aye".)
  


 9                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
  


10                 (No response.)
  


11                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.  Mr.
  


12   Ramos?
  


13                 COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  In the case of
  


14   Michelle Weatherspoon versus St. John's Lutheran Church
  


15   I recommend that we uphold the Executive Director's
  


16   finding of no probable cause.
  


17                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And may I have a
  


18   motion to accept that recommendation?
  


19                 COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  So moved.
  


20                 COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  Second.
  


21                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?
  


22                 (All respond "aye".)
  


23                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
  


24                 (No response.)
  


25                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Anything from
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 1   Commissioner Garcia?
  


 2                 MS. RINCONES-CHAVEZ:  Yes.  Good morning.
  


 3   For Commissioner Garcia, Lavia Parks versus Dollar Tree
  


 4   is upheld to no probable cause.  Thank you.
  


 5                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.  May I
  


 6   have a motion to accept that recommendation?
  


 7                 COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  So moved.
  


 8                 COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  Second.
  


 9                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?
  


10                 (All respond "aye".)
  


11                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
  


12                 (No response.)
  


13                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.
  


14   Commissioner Baynard?
  


15                 COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  Yes.  In the case of
  


16   John Garis versus Honeywell Aerospace I would recommend
  


17   to the Commission that we uphold the finding of no
  


18   probable cause.
  


19                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And may I have a
  


20   motion to accept that recommendation?
  


21                 COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  So moved.
  


22                 COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Second.
  


23                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?
  


24                 (All respond "aye".)
  


25                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
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 1                 (No response.)
  


 2                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Okay, and
  


 3   Commissioner Gidney, I have a memo here:  "In the case
  


 4   of Brooks versus Sheraton Hotels my recommendation is to
  


 5   reverse the finding of no cause," and since he is
  


 6   reversing, he added "The complainant, who is an African-
  


 7   American male, sought lodging at the Sheraton and found
  


 8   what he considered to be unfavorable treatment prompting
  


 9   him to leave.  The Sheraton has not refuted the validity
  


10   of the claimant's story.  The position of the Sheraton
  


11   is that there was neither an actual, nor an actionable
  


12   refusal of services on their part because the
  


13   complainant left by choice.  My reversal recommendation
  


14   is based on the belief that the hotel bears some
  


15   responsibility for the conditions which prompted the
  


16   complainant to leave."  And may I have a motion to
  


17   accept that recommendation to reverse?
  


18                 COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  So moved.
  


19                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Second?
  


20                 COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  Second.
  


21                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Okay, all in favor?
  


22                 (All respond "aye".)
  


23                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
  


24                 (No response.)
  


25                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.  New
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 1   business, assignment of new appeals.  Commissioner
  


 2   Crenshaw, if you would review the case of Tiffini Vance
  


 3   versus Steak N Shake Restaurant and Annette Polk versus
  


 4   James Management Group.
  


 5                 Mr. Baynard, if you would review Terry
  


 6   Lymon versus UAW Local 2209 and Dominque Smith versus
  


 7   Michiana Behavioral Health.
  


 8                 Commissioner Ramos, Everett Harding versus
  


 9   Goodwill Industries of Central Indiana and Enrique
  


10   Rosales versus Diversco, Inc.
  


11                 And I will review Gerald Harsh versus
  


12   Honeywell Aerospace and Travis Story versus The Judge
  


13   Group.  And I'll review Commissioner Blackburn's as
  


14   well, Darlene Sharpe versus Kroger Food Store.
  


15                 MS. RINCONES-CHAVEZ:  Thank you.
  


16                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Findings of fact,
  


17   conclusions of law and order.  There are four.  Brittany
  


18   N. Taylor versus Elkhart Rehabilitation Center, Sarah R.
  


19   Hunt versus Subway, Tosha Vick versus Subway, and
  


20   Victoria Minne versus Nick's Patio.  May I have a motion
  


21   to accept those findings, please?
  


22                 COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  So moved.
  


23                 COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  Second.
  


24                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?
  


25                 (All respond "aye".)
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 1                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
  


 2                 (No response.)
  


 3                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.  And there
  


 4   are no consent agreements, and so we arrive at the
  


 5   administrative update from the Executive Director.
  


 6                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Good afternoon.
  


 7                 (All respond "good afternoon".)
  


 8                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Really quick I
  


 9   wanted to touch base on a few things, specifically our
  


10   outreach and education efforts.  A few things to note,
  


11   one is we've just come off of our MLK coordination of
  


12   events.  It went very well, if I may say so myself.  We
  


13   had an event here at the State House.  Wanted to give a
  


14   public congratulations or a "Thank You," if you will, to
  


15   the staff who pulled off a very successful event,
  


16   represented the Commission very, very well.  Governor
  


17   Pence attended, as well as we had a good keynote speaker
  


18   and Mr. Gary Brackett, who was there as well.
  


19                 A few things to note about that Thursday,
  


20   which was January 17, if I'm not mistaken, a very good
  


21   and diverse group of award recipients, also the second
  


22   year of us awarding our MLK Art, Writing and Multimedia
  


23   Contest winner, which is a young person throughout the
  


24   state that we give that award to in conjunction with
  


25   Indiana Black Expo.  Very, very deserving young lady,
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 1   Ms. Mia Gjeldum was the winner this year and did very,
  


 2   very well, as did the other recipients.  We followed
  


 3   Thursday, the 17th, by a day of service that Friday, the
  


 4   morning of January 18th, here on MLK Boulevard with a
  


 5   community cleanup and kind of a day of action.  Governor
  


 6   Pence showed up there as well to help with some cleanup,
  


 7   ironically did a very good job of that, as did Mr. Gary
  


 8   Brackett, who agreed to come out that Friday and help
  


 9   participate as well, so we got a lot of good coverage.
  


10                 I'm not sure if you guys have had an
  


11   opportunity to pull up some of the media bites that came
  


12   from that, but we had very, very good coverage for the
  


13   Agency throughout the state, so we were very excited
  


14   about that piece.  Tons of media interviews came out of
  


15   that with more than 20, 30 some odd media outlets,
  


16   including Hispanic radio and TV, so we were excited
  


17   about that.
  


18                 A few things to note in terms of upcoming
  


19   events.  Continuing our efforts with the Burmese
  


20   community, we have a Burmese Community Outreach Meeting
  


21   coming up in late February on the 23rd, that should be
  


22   in your packet as well, as well as a list of other --
  


23   there's another one in March, a Burmese Community
  


24   Outreach Meeting on the 9th of March, as well as the
  


25   30th of March, so we're excited about that as well.
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 1                 The Holocaust event comes up in April, and
  


 2   as we all know, that is Fair Housing Month, so we will
  


 3   be hosting a Fair Housing Conference here in
  


 4   Indianapolis on the 18th and we plan to make that as
  


 5   comprehensive of a conference as we can come up with,
  


 6   and kind of planting the seed in the back of the
  


 7   Commissioners' minds now, would love to have you guys
  


 8   engaged in that as well.
  


 9                 A few housekeeping and personnel issues,
  


10   not "issues," but updates to give and I'll have her come
  


11   to the mike here in a minute, but we are excited to have
  


12   onboard our new Deputy Director, Ms. Akia Haynes, who is
  


13   taking the place of Mr. Joshua Brewster, who moved on to
  


14   greener pastures, so we're excited to have Ms. Haynes
  


15   with us and she's here with us today.
  


16                 Judge Lange, our long-standing ALJ, has
  


17   gone on and we are in the process of looking to -- you
  


18   can never replace Judge Lange -- but looking to fill
  


19   that void as well.  We had to deal with a lot of
  


20   transitions with the change in administration and things
  


21   of that nature, so the process to pull in new folks is,
  


22   if you can believe it, taking a lot longer than
  


23   anticipated because government stuff tends to take a lot
  


24   longer than we would like anyway.  And we're also
  


25   looking to hire someone else in our Outreach and
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 1   Education area, a communications specialist to help do
  


 2   more in that area.  We're pushing forward and I would
  


 3   argue that that group has been the catalyst behind a lot
  


 4   of the new events and good things that we're doing with
  


 5   the Agency.  We want to continue to foster that piece as
  


 6   well, so those two we're still looking to fill.  But,
  


 7   again, we do have Ms. Haynes with us here and I'd like
  


 8   her to come to the microphone and introduce herself to
  


 9   the Commission, and if you guys have any questions for
  


10   me, I'll take those at this time.
  


11                 COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Just to comment on the
  


12   MLK session, I was there, it was done extremely well, it
  


13   always has been, but I thought that was probably one of
  


14   the first things that Governor Pence had the opportunity
  


15   to speak at and I thought he did a very good job in
  


16   light of being the first thing that he had to do
  


17   officially, so it was good to make sure he was there, I
  


18   think that was important for everybody.  And I didn't
  


19   hear you say much about the Youth Session in the
  


20   morning, but I know you had a lot of people in the Youth
  


21   Session, too.
  


22                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  You know what, I
  


23   apologize for that, you're absolutely right,
  


24   Commissioner Ramos.  Prior to the deal at the State
  


25   House we had the Youth Summit, we had nearly 400 young
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 1   people from across the state attend that piece in
  


 2   conjunction with the Indiana State Museum.  That went
  


 3   extremely well, got a lot of good feedback from that,
  


 4   from the kids, of course, as well a lot of the
  


 5   administrators and teachers and things that brought the
  


 6   kids from various parts of the state.  So you're
  


 7   absolutely right, I apologize for that.  That kind of
  


 8   set the tone and the mood for the two days and it went
  


 9   well, went off without a hitch.
  


10                 COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Yeah, it would be
  


11   great to get the download, the song that the young lady
  


12   sang.  I don't know if you had a chance to listen to it
  


13   but I highly recommend it.
  


14                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  It was very
  


15   moving.
  


16                 COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Very moving.
  


17                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  We're looking to
  


18   see if we can get -- We're hoping that the whole event
  


19   was recorded on video and if so we'll make sure that we
  


20   at least have either copies of that or snippets of that
  


21   that we can upload online that you guys can kind of
  


22   chime in and check out, but I agree with you, she was
  


23   phenomenal, and in my personal opinion she represented,
  


24   you know, the whole purpose of the day very, very well.
  


25   You know, I was intentional about my comments about it
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 1   being a diverse group of people, so, you know, we're
  


 2   celebrating the legacy and life of Dr. King, right, who
  


 3   advocated for all and we had a good diverse group of
  


 4   people from an age standpoint, from a race standpoint,
  


 5   social and economic background status, so, you know, all
  


 6   of those things played into it and we were very excited
  


 7   not only for her but everyone, but, you know, to your
  


 8   point, she did a phenomenal job and was, you could
  


 9   argue, kind of the life of the event that day.
  


10                 COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Yeah, I think so.
  


11   Picture Nora Jones sitting down at the piano and playing
  


12   a song and knocking it out of the park.
  


13                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Yes.
  


14                 COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  That's pretty much
  


15   what she did.  Her voice was just as good.  Technically,
  


16   she should have a contract.  We should get her on
  


17   American Idol or something.
  


18                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  All right.
  


19                 COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  Will you be her
  


20   agent?
  


21                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  He's pushing to
  


22   be her agent.  Any other questions for me?
  


23                 (No response.)
  


24                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  At this time I'd
  


25   like to introduce Ms. Akia Haynes and let her give you a
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 1   little bit of background about herself.
  


 2                 DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAYNES:  Thank you, Jamal,
  


 3   for your kind words.  My name is Akia Haynes, I'm a
  


 4   native Hoosier, born and raised in Indianapolis.  Went
  


 5   away to South Bend for a little bit of time, Notre Dame
  


 6   for undergrad, as well as law school.  I was a Deputy
  


 7   Director for about three years, I was in licensing
  


 8   enforcement for the last portion, as well as civil
  


 9   rights and employment for that first portion, so have a
  


10   bit of experience all over the place, and currently I am
  


11   now Deputy Director and I'm looking forward to working
  


12   with you guys and working with the organization, so I'm
  


13   very excited about this experience.  Anyone want to
  


14   learn anything else?
  


15                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any questions?
  


16   Otherwise, welcome!
  


17                 DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAYNES:  Thank you so much.
  


18                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  We look forward to
  


19   working with you.
  


20                 DEPUTY DIRECTORY HAYNES:  I look forward to
  


21   it as well.
  


22                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And for the record I
  


23   would note that our Chair has arrived.  If she would
  


24   like, I will turn over the gavel to her.  I didn't mean
  


25   to talk to you in the third person as if you weren't
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 1   here.
  


 2                 COMMISSIONER BLACKBURN:  No, thank you.
  


 3   Carry on.  I don't want to interrupt your flow.
  


 4                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Okay.  Well, that,
  


 5   with the Administrative Update, brings us to
  


 6   announcements.  I have one.  There was an additional
  


 7   thing from Commissioner Gidney here.  He wants to go on
  


 8   record and commend the Washington, DC based staff of
  


 9   Senator Joe Donnelly.  He found them to be extremely
  


10   helpful during his visit to DC for the 57th Inauguration
  


11   of President Barack Obama.  And are there any other
  


12   announcements, observations, songs, dances?
  


13                 COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Any other changes
  


14   expected from the new administration?
  


15                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Not to my
  


16   knowledge, but I've kind of learned in this line of work
  


17   that you just anticipate whatever comes and just learn
  


18   how to be good at calling them out when they do arrive,
  


19   so at this point I, you know, think that we've put
  


20   together a really good plan and the Agency is humming
  


21   right along.  I don't expect any changes, at least any
  


22   adverse changes, whether it's staff, personnel or
  


23   strategic objectives, so we're looking forward to
  


24   pushing right along.
  


25                 COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  And it wasn't on his
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 1   radar screen from the speech that he had at his
  


 2   inauguration speech, so I would presume that's a safe
  


 3   conclusion.
  


 4                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Yeah, I think if
  


 5   we're not in the area of -- Well, you know, keep in mind
  


 6   that one of our pushes has been education, obviously,
  


 7   which is one of the initiatives that we took on in our
  


 8   strategic plan, so there is some overlap, but, you know,
  


 9   we are not DOE, nor are we, you know, the policy
  


10   administrators of education for the state, you know, we
  


11   just kind of -- we've adopted the idea that everyone
  


12   deserves equal access to a quality education.  As the
  


13   Civil Rights Commission we want to make sure we uphold
  


14   that piece as one of our missions and objectives, so as
  


15   such, you know, we assume that we will have some
  


16   conversation with, you know, the players at the table as
  


17   it relates to the disparities in education, but we don't
  


18   think that anything administratively from the Governor's
  


19   Office will affect our plans here.
  


20                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  I would just like to
  


21   note that I brought in an AP article from Indianapolis
  


22   that on this same day of the MLK holiday commemoration
  


23   Joe Hogsett, who's a US Attorney, announced the creation
  


24   of the Task Force for Civil Rights Enforcement and he is
  


25   the US Attorney for the southern area of Indiana, which
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 1   I have other information that involves the 60 counties
  


 2   of southern Indiana.
  


 3                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Yes, of southern
  


 4   Indiana.
  


 5                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Yes, and I wondered
  


 6   when I saw it how much duplication there was and I don't
  


 7   know.  I do know that the southern 60 counties of
  


 8   Indiana tend to be underserved by every agency, not just
  


 9   us, and I know this because in the past I have been
  


10   involved in some ADA compliance issues and anything
  


11   south of Bedford is the "Wild West."  There's no
  


12   official representation until you get down to the river.
  


13                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  We were made
  


14   aware of that.  I know you didn't put it in the form of
  


15   a question, but we are attempting to gather as much
  


16   information about those efforts as we can, number 1, to
  


17   your point, to see whether there are any duplicated
  


18   efforts going on and if so how can we collaborate there
  


19   and prevent that duplication from happening.
  


20                 Two, see whether as an agency we've left
  


21   some holes somewhere that perhaps we need to fill and
  


22   plug in kind of from the Fed's viewpoint, and then, too,
  


23   it sounds like we've, you know, got some more contacts
  


24   that we need to make as an agency, especially as it
  


25   relates to that southern half of the state.  So as soon
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 1   as we gather information for that we'll make sure that
  


 2   we communicate that back to the Commission and keep you
  


 3   guys informed as we move along.
  


 4                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Since we already do
  


 5   so much EEOC and HUD work --
  


 6                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Yes, we thought
  


 7   it was a bit surprising, the announcement, especially
  


 8   considering we hadn't received any phone calls or any
  


 9   inquiries at all, but I will go on the record and say
  


10   that duplication is not uncommon for government at all
  


11   levels, it's unfortunate, but hopefully we can play a
  


12   part in preventing as much of that as we can.
  


13                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  We certainly don't
  


14   need more jurisdictional dispute in those areas.  Are
  


15   there any more comments or questions?
  


16                 COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  I have one.  Since
  


17   we're in a new session of the General Assembly, are
  


18   there any bills before the Assembly that will affect us?
  


19                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Very good
  


20   question.  The short answer to that question is no.  I
  


21   will say, though, that we received about a week ago a
  


22   list of proposed statutory changes that they thought
  


23   initially would affect us.  There was a state rep, his
  


24   name escapes me at this time, who wanted to include the
  


25   word "disability" in a ton of different statutes, any of
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 1   the civil statutes, and of course that was one of ours.
  


 2   We had to call and say that that's already one of our
  


 3   protected classes and one that we fight for currently
  


 4   and so there was no need to amend that piece, and it was
  


 5   kind of a teaching moment for that side of things.
  


 6   However, there are some other agencies that have a
  


 7   policy that affect the disabled community that they
  


 8   wanted to make sure was added to those statutes, so we
  


 9   could potentially be pulled in to, you know, perhaps
  


10   testify about what we do as an agency.  That remains to
  


11   be seen.  That depends on how far that proposal goes,
  


12   but as it relates to the Civil Rights Law, the Indiana
  


13   Civil Rights Law that creates us, there shouldn't be any
  


14   changes for that.
  


15                 We will keep an eye -- Danny Lopez, who is
  


16   the other Deputy in the office, he serves "slash the
  


17   legislative liaison" and it's his job to keep an eye on
  


18   all of those things that come down.  So currently,
  


19   outside of that one, which we've kind of diffused, there
  


20   aren't any legislative proposals that would affect us as
  


21   an agency...yet.  So keeping an eye on it.  That's a
  


22   very good question.
  


23                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  If there are no more
  


24   questions, before we adjourn I would like to go back to
  


25   the assignment of appeals and instead of taking three
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 1   appeals, I will pass the one that was originally
  


 2   assigned to Commissioner Blackburn back to her, that was
  


 3   Darlene Sharpe versus Kroger Food Store.
  


 4                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  You made it just
  


 5   in time.
  


 6                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And with that, --
  


 7                 COMMISSIONER BLACKBURN:  Lucky me!
  


 8                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  I know.
  


 9                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  -- stay for
  


10   signatures if there are any.
  


11                 MS. RINCONES-CHAVEZ:  Yes.
  


12                 COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And make note of the
  


13   meeting dates for the year, and we are adjourned.
  


14                 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Thank you.
  


15                 (WHEREUPON, at 11:52 a.m., January 25,
  


16                  2013, this meeting concluded for the day.)
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            1                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Good morning and



            2  welcome to the public meeting, the January public



            3  meeting of the Indiana Civil Rights Commission.  Happy



            4  2013!  In the absence of our Chairwoman I will be



            5  starting the meeting and perhaps hand it over to her



            6  when she arrives.



            7                We do have a quorum, so the next item of



            8  business is to approve and adopt the minutes of the last



            9  meeting.  May I have a motion to do so?



           10                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  So moved.



           11                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  Second.



           12                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?



           13                (All respond "aye".)



           14                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?



           15                (No response.)



           16                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Ms. Cook, would you



           17  like to deliver a financial report?



           18                MS. COOK:  Good morning.



           19                (All respond "good morning".)



           20                MS. COOK:  You've had a chance to review



           21  the December financial report located in your packets.



           22  The only thing I'd like to make mention of is that we



           23  have received the second quarterly disbursement for our



           24  HUD Partnership Funds in the amount of $62,500, and at



           25  this point we do anticipate receiving the balance of
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            1  that agreement of the 125,000 by the end of this fiscal



            2  year.  If you have any questions I'd like to entertain



            3  those at this time.



            4                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Are there any



            5  questions?



            6                (No response.)



            7                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Hearing none, thank



            8  you.  And we'll continue to old business and the reports



            9  by the Commissioners on complainant appeals.  I will go



           10  first because I'm first on the agenda.



           11                In the case of Heather Bass versus



           12  Bloomington Housing Authority I recommend we uphold the



           13  finding of no reasonable cause.  May I have a motion to



           14  accept that recommendation?



           15                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  So moved.



           16                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  Second.



           17                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?



           18                (All respond "aye".)



           19                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?



           20                (No response.)



           21                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.  Ms.



           22  Crenshaw?



           23                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  The case of Viola



           24  Wilcox, on behalf of Briley Wilcox versus Seymour



           25  Community School Corporation I'd like to make a motion
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            1  we accept the Executive Director's finding of no



            2  probable cause.



            3                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And may I have a



            4  motion to accept that recommendation?



            5                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  So moved.



            6                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Second.



            7                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?



            8                (All respond "aye".)



            9                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?



           10                (No response.)



           11                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.  Mr.



           12  Ramos?



           13                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  In the case of



           14  Michelle Weatherspoon versus St. John's Lutheran Church



           15  I recommend that we uphold the Executive Director's



           16  finding of no probable cause.



           17                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And may I have a



           18  motion to accept that recommendation?



           19                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  So moved.



           20                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  Second.



           21                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?



           22                (All respond "aye".)



           23                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?



           24                (No response.)



           25                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Anything from
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            1  Commissioner Garcia?



            2                MS. RINCONES-CHAVEZ:  Yes.  Good morning.



            3  For Commissioner Garcia, Lavia Parks versus Dollar Tree



            4  is upheld to no probable cause.  Thank you.



            5                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.  May I



            6  have a motion to accept that recommendation?



            7                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  So moved.



            8                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  Second.



            9                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?



           10                (All respond "aye".)



           11                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?



           12                (No response.)



           13                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.



           14  Commissioner Baynard?



           15                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  Yes.  In the case of



           16  John Garis versus Honeywell Aerospace I would recommend



           17  to the Commission that we uphold the finding of no



           18  probable cause.



           19                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And may I have a



           20  motion to accept that recommendation?



           21                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  So moved.



           22                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Second.



           23                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?



           24                (All respond "aye".)



           25                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?
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            1                (No response.)



            2                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Okay, and



            3  Commissioner Gidney, I have a memo here:  "In the case



            4  of Brooks versus Sheraton Hotels my recommendation is to



            5  reverse the finding of no cause," and since he is



            6  reversing, he added "The complainant, who is an African-



            7  American male, sought lodging at the Sheraton and found



            8  what he considered to be unfavorable treatment prompting



            9  him to leave.  The Sheraton has not refuted the validity



           10  of the claimant's story.  The position of the Sheraton



           11  is that there was neither an actual, nor an actionable



           12  refusal of services on their part because the



           13  complainant left by choice.  My reversal recommendation



           14  is based on the belief that the hotel bears some



           15  responsibility for the conditions which prompted the



           16  complainant to leave."  And may I have a motion to



           17  accept that recommendation to reverse?



           18                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  So moved.



           19                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Second?



           20                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  Second.



           21                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Okay, all in favor?



           22                (All respond "aye".)



           23                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?



           24                (No response.)



           25                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.  New
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            1  business, assignment of new appeals.  Commissioner



            2  Crenshaw, if you would review the case of Tiffini Vance



            3  versus Steak N Shake Restaurant and Annette Polk versus



            4  James Management Group.



            5                Mr. Baynard, if you would review Terry



            6  Lymon versus UAW Local 2209 and Dominque Smith versus



            7  Michiana Behavioral Health.



            8                Commissioner Ramos, Everett Harding versus



            9  Goodwill Industries of Central Indiana and Enrique



           10  Rosales versus Diversco, Inc.



           11                And I will review Gerald Harsh versus



           12  Honeywell Aerospace and Travis Story versus The Judge



           13  Group.  And I'll review Commissioner Blackburn's as



           14  well, Darlene Sharpe versus Kroger Food Store.



           15                MS. RINCONES-CHAVEZ:  Thank you.



           16                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Findings of fact,



           17  conclusions of law and order.  There are four.  Brittany



           18  N. Taylor versus Elkhart Rehabilitation Center, Sarah R.



           19  Hunt versus Subway, Tosha Vick versus Subway, and



           20  Victoria Minne versus Nick's Patio.  May I have a motion



           21  to accept those findings, please?



           22                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  So moved.



           23                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  Second.



           24                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  All in favor?



           25                (All respond "aye".)
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            1                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any opposed?



            2                (No response.)



            3                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Thank you.  And there



            4  are no consent agreements, and so we arrive at the



            5  administrative update from the Executive Director.



            6                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Good afternoon.



            7                (All respond "good afternoon".)



            8                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Really quick I



            9  wanted to touch base on a few things, specifically our



           10  outreach and education efforts.  A few things to note,



           11  one is we've just come off of our MLK coordination of



           12  events.  It went very well, if I may say so myself.  We



           13  had an event here at the State House.  Wanted to give a



           14  public congratulations or a "Thank You," if you will, to



           15  the staff who pulled off a very successful event,



           16  represented the Commission very, very well.  Governor



           17  Pence attended, as well as we had a good keynote speaker



           18  and Mr. Gary Brackett, who was there as well.



           19                A few things to note about that Thursday,



           20  which was January 17, if I'm not mistaken, a very good



           21  and diverse group of award recipients, also the second



           22  year of us awarding our MLK Art, Writing and Multimedia



           23  Contest winner, which is a young person throughout the



           24  state that we give that award to in conjunction with



           25  Indiana Black Expo.  Very, very deserving young lady,
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            1  Ms. Mia Gjeldum was the winner this year and did very,



            2  very well, as did the other recipients.  We followed



            3  Thursday, the 17th, by a day of service that Friday, the



            4  morning of January 18th, here on MLK Boulevard with a



            5  community cleanup and kind of a day of action.  Governor



            6  Pence showed up there as well to help with some cleanup,



            7  ironically did a very good job of that, as did Mr. Gary



            8  Brackett, who agreed to come out that Friday and help



            9  participate as well, so we got a lot of good coverage.



           10                I'm not sure if you guys have had an



           11  opportunity to pull up some of the media bites that came



           12  from that, but we had very, very good coverage for the



           13  Agency throughout the state, so we were very excited



           14  about that piece.  Tons of media interviews came out of



           15  that with more than 20, 30 some odd media outlets,



           16  including Hispanic radio and TV, so we were excited



           17  about that.



           18                A few things to note in terms of upcoming



           19  events.  Continuing our efforts with the Burmese



           20  community, we have a Burmese Community Outreach Meeting



           21  coming up in late February on the 23rd, that should be



           22  in your packet as well, as well as a list of other --



           23  there's another one in March, a Burmese Community



           24  Outreach Meeting on the 9th of March, as well as the



           25  30th of March, so we're excited about that as well.
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            1                The Holocaust event comes up in April, and



            2  as we all know, that is Fair Housing Month, so we will



            3  be hosting a Fair Housing Conference here in



            4  Indianapolis on the 18th and we plan to make that as



            5  comprehensive of a conference as we can come up with,



            6  and kind of planting the seed in the back of the



            7  Commissioners' minds now, would love to have you guys



            8  engaged in that as well.



            9                A few housekeeping and personnel issues,



           10  not "issues," but updates to give and I'll have her come



           11  to the mike here in a minute, but we are excited to have



           12  onboard our new Deputy Director, Ms. Akia Haynes, who is



           13  taking the place of Mr. Joshua Brewster, who moved on to



           14  greener pastures, so we're excited to have Ms. Haynes



           15  with us and she's here with us today.



           16                Judge Lange, our long-standing ALJ, has



           17  gone on and we are in the process of looking to -- you



           18  can never replace Judge Lange -- but looking to fill



           19  that void as well.  We had to deal with a lot of



           20  transitions with the change in administration and things



           21  of that nature, so the process to pull in new folks is,



           22  if you can believe it, taking a lot longer than



           23  anticipated because government stuff tends to take a lot



           24  longer than we would like anyway.  And we're also



           25  looking to hire someone else in our Outreach and
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            1  Education area, a communications specialist to help do



            2  more in that area.  We're pushing forward and I would



            3  argue that that group has been the catalyst behind a lot



            4  of the new events and good things that we're doing with



            5  the Agency.  We want to continue to foster that piece as



            6  well, so those two we're still looking to fill.  But,



            7  again, we do have Ms. Haynes with us here and I'd like



            8  her to come to the microphone and introduce herself to



            9  the Commission, and if you guys have any questions for



           10  me, I'll take those at this time.



           11                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Just to comment on the



           12  MLK session, I was there, it was done extremely well, it



           13  always has been, but I thought that was probably one of



           14  the first things that Governor Pence had the opportunity



           15  to speak at and I thought he did a very good job in



           16  light of being the first thing that he had to do



           17  officially, so it was good to make sure he was there, I



           18  think that was important for everybody.  And I didn't



           19  hear you say much about the Youth Session in the



           20  morning, but I know you had a lot of people in the Youth



           21  Session, too.



           22                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  You know what, I



           23  apologize for that, you're absolutely right,



           24  Commissioner Ramos.  Prior to the deal at the State



           25  House we had the Youth Summit, we had nearly 400 young
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            1  people from across the state attend that piece in



            2  conjunction with the Indiana State Museum.  That went



            3  extremely well, got a lot of good feedback from that,



            4  from the kids, of course, as well a lot of the



            5  administrators and teachers and things that brought the



            6  kids from various parts of the state.  So you're



            7  absolutely right, I apologize for that.  That kind of



            8  set the tone and the mood for the two days and it went



            9  well, went off without a hitch.



           10                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Yeah, it would be



           11  great to get the download, the song that the young lady



           12  sang.  I don't know if you had a chance to listen to it



           13  but I highly recommend it.



           14                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  It was very



           15  moving.



           16                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Very moving.



           17                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  We're looking to



           18  see if we can get -- We're hoping that the whole event



           19  was recorded on video and if so we'll make sure that we



           20  at least have either copies of that or snippets of that



           21  that we can upload online that you guys can kind of



           22  chime in and check out, but I agree with you, she was



           23  phenomenal, and in my personal opinion she represented,



           24  you know, the whole purpose of the day very, very well.



           25  You know, I was intentional about my comments about it
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            1  being a diverse group of people, so, you know, we're



            2  celebrating the legacy and life of Dr. King, right, who



            3  advocated for all and we had a good diverse group of



            4  people from an age standpoint, from a race standpoint,



            5  social and economic background status, so, you know, all



            6  of those things played into it and we were very excited



            7  not only for her but everyone, but, you know, to your



            8  point, she did a phenomenal job and was, you could



            9  argue, kind of the life of the event that day.



           10                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Yeah, I think so.



           11  Picture Nora Jones sitting down at the piano and playing



           12  a song and knocking it out of the park.



           13                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Yes.



           14                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  That's pretty much



           15  what she did.  Her voice was just as good.  Technically,



           16  she should have a contract.  We should get her on



           17  American Idol or something.



           18                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  All right.



           19                COMMISSIONER CRENSHAW:  Will you be her



           20  agent?



           21                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  He's pushing to



           22  be her agent.  Any other questions for me?



           23                (No response.)



           24                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  At this time I'd



           25  like to introduce Ms. Akia Haynes and let her give you a
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            1  little bit of background about herself.



            2                DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAYNES:  Thank you, Jamal,



            3  for your kind words.  My name is Akia Haynes, I'm a



            4  native Hoosier, born and raised in Indianapolis.  Went



            5  away to South Bend for a little bit of time, Notre Dame



            6  for undergrad, as well as law school.  I was a Deputy



            7  Director for about three years, I was in licensing



            8  enforcement for the last portion, as well as civil



            9  rights and employment for that first portion, so have a



           10  bit of experience all over the place, and currently I am



           11  now Deputy Director and I'm looking forward to working



           12  with you guys and working with the organization, so I'm



           13  very excited about this experience.  Anyone want to



           14  learn anything else?



           15                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Any questions?



           16  Otherwise, welcome!



           17                DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAYNES:  Thank you so much.



           18                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  We look forward to



           19  working with you.



           20                DEPUTY DIRECTORY HAYNES:  I look forward to



           21  it as well.



           22                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And for the record I



           23  would note that our Chair has arrived.  If she would



           24  like, I will turn over the gavel to her.  I didn't mean



           25  to talk to you in the third person as if you weren't
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            1  here.



            2                COMMISSIONER BLACKBURN:  No, thank you.



            3  Carry on.  I don't want to interrupt your flow.



            4                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Okay.  Well, that,



            5  with the Administrative Update, brings us to



            6  announcements.  I have one.  There was an additional



            7  thing from Commissioner Gidney here.  He wants to go on



            8  record and commend the Washington, DC based staff of



            9  Senator Joe Donnelly.  He found them to be extremely



           10  helpful during his visit to DC for the 57th Inauguration



           11  of President Barack Obama.  And are there any other



           12  announcements, observations, songs, dances?



           13                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  Any other changes



           14  expected from the new administration?



           15                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Not to my



           16  knowledge, but I've kind of learned in this line of work



           17  that you just anticipate whatever comes and just learn



           18  how to be good at calling them out when they do arrive,



           19  so at this point I, you know, think that we've put



           20  together a really good plan and the Agency is humming



           21  right along.  I don't expect any changes, at least any



           22  adverse changes, whether it's staff, personnel or



           23  strategic objectives, so we're looking forward to



           24  pushing right along.



           25                COMMISSIONER RAMOS:  And it wasn't on his
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            1  radar screen from the speech that he had at his



            2  inauguration speech, so I would presume that's a safe



            3  conclusion.



            4                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Yeah, I think if



            5  we're not in the area of -- Well, you know, keep in mind



            6  that one of our pushes has been education, obviously,



            7  which is one of the initiatives that we took on in our



            8  strategic plan, so there is some overlap, but, you know,



            9  we are not DOE, nor are we, you know, the policy



           10  administrators of education for the state, you know, we



           11  just kind of -- we've adopted the idea that everyone



           12  deserves equal access to a quality education.  As the



           13  Civil Rights Commission we want to make sure we uphold



           14  that piece as one of our missions and objectives, so as



           15  such, you know, we assume that we will have some



           16  conversation with, you know, the players at the table as



           17  it relates to the disparities in education, but we don't



           18  think that anything administratively from the Governor's



           19  Office will affect our plans here.



           20                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  I would just like to



           21  note that I brought in an AP article from Indianapolis



           22  that on this same day of the MLK holiday commemoration



           23  Joe Hogsett, who's a US Attorney, announced the creation



           24  of the Task Force for Civil Rights Enforcement and he is



           25  the US Attorney for the southern area of Indiana, which
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            1  I have other information that involves the 60 counties



            2  of southern Indiana.



            3                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Yes, of southern



            4  Indiana.



            5                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Yes, and I wondered



            6  when I saw it how much duplication there was and I don't



            7  know.  I do know that the southern 60 counties of



            8  Indiana tend to be underserved by every agency, not just



            9  us, and I know this because in the past I have been



           10  involved in some ADA compliance issues and anything



           11  south of Bedford is the "Wild West."  There's no



           12  official representation until you get down to the river.



           13                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  We were made



           14  aware of that.  I know you didn't put it in the form of



           15  a question, but we are attempting to gather as much



           16  information about those efforts as we can, number 1, to



           17  your point, to see whether there are any duplicated



           18  efforts going on and if so how can we collaborate there



           19  and prevent that duplication from happening.



           20                Two, see whether as an agency we've left



           21  some holes somewhere that perhaps we need to fill and



           22  plug in kind of from the Fed's viewpoint, and then, too,



           23  it sounds like we've, you know, got some more contacts



           24  that we need to make as an agency, especially as it



           25  relates to that southern half of the state.  So as soon
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            1  as we gather information for that we'll make sure that



            2  we communicate that back to the Commission and keep you



            3  guys informed as we move along.



            4                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  Since we already do



            5  so much EEOC and HUD work --



            6                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Yes, we thought



            7  it was a bit surprising, the announcement, especially



            8  considering we hadn't received any phone calls or any



            9  inquiries at all, but I will go on the record and say



           10  that duplication is not uncommon for government at all



           11  levels, it's unfortunate, but hopefully we can play a



           12  part in preventing as much of that as we can.



           13                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  We certainly don't



           14  need more jurisdictional dispute in those areas.  Are



           15  there any more comments or questions?



           16                COMMISSIONER BAYNARD:  I have one.  Since



           17  we're in a new session of the General Assembly, are



           18  there any bills before the Assembly that will affect us?



           19                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Very good



           20  question.  The short answer to that question is no.  I



           21  will say, though, that we received about a week ago a



           22  list of proposed statutory changes that they thought



           23  initially would affect us.  There was a state rep, his



           24  name escapes me at this time, who wanted to include the



           25  word "disability" in a ton of different statutes, any of
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            1  the civil statutes, and of course that was one of ours.



            2  We had to call and say that that's already one of our



            3  protected classes and one that we fight for currently



            4  and so there was no need to amend that piece, and it was



            5  kind of a teaching moment for that side of things.



            6  However, there are some other agencies that have a



            7  policy that affect the disabled community that they



            8  wanted to make sure was added to those statutes, so we



            9  could potentially be pulled in to, you know, perhaps



           10  testify about what we do as an agency.  That remains to



           11  be seen.  That depends on how far that proposal goes,



           12  but as it relates to the Civil Rights Law, the Indiana



           13  Civil Rights Law that creates us, there shouldn't be any



           14  changes for that.



           15                We will keep an eye -- Danny Lopez, who is



           16  the other Deputy in the office, he serves "slash the



           17  legislative liaison" and it's his job to keep an eye on



           18  all of those things that come down.  So currently,



           19  outside of that one, which we've kind of diffused, there



           20  aren't any legislative proposals that would affect us as



           21  an agency...yet.  So keeping an eye on it.  That's a



           22  very good question.



           23                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  If there are no more



           24  questions, before we adjourn I would like to go back to



           25  the assignment of appeals and instead of taking three
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            1  appeals, I will pass the one that was originally



            2  assigned to Commissioner Blackburn back to her, that was



            3  Darlene Sharpe versus Kroger Food Store.



            4                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  You made it just



            5  in time.



            6                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And with that, --



            7                COMMISSIONER BLACKBURN:  Lucky me!



            8                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  I know.



            9                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  -- stay for



           10  signatures if there are any.



           11                MS. RINCONES-CHAVEZ:  Yes.



           12                COMMISSIONER CARTER:  And make note of the



           13  meeting dates for the year, and we are adjourned.



           14                EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SMITH:  Thank you.



           15                (WHEREUPON, at 11:52 a.m., January 25,



           16                 2013, this meeting concluded for the day.)
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